
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 1, 2018 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – OCTOBER 1, 2018 

 
Board Room                   Regular Meeting                              6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION – Roy Harrison, Lebanon Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

1. RC Tourism Committee 
2. RC Fire Chiefs  

 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS………………………………………………………………………A-1  
 
Industrial Development Authority 
 
Ernie McFaddin   4-Year Term 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace   2-Year Term 
 
Planning Commission 
 
Vacant (Mark Mitchell)   4-Year Term 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 1, 2018 

Russell County Page 2 
 

Vacant (Harry Ferguson)  4-Year Term (County Representative) 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
• Unapproved minutes of September 10, 2018  
• Unapproved minutes of September 17, 2018  

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. RC Treasurer Writ of Election.………………………………………………………..C-1 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Engineering Services (RFP) for Consolidation of RC PSA & CWSA…………..D-1 
 

2. Legal Services (RFP) – County Attorney……………………………………………D-2 
 

3. Russell County Cost Allocation Plan 6/30/2018……………………………………D-3 
 

4. Maintenance Supervisor Position…………………………………………………….D-4 
 

5. Veteran’s Forum at SWCC……………………………………………………………..D-5 
 

6. Cleveland School Property Survey…………………………………………………..D-6 
 

7. Dr. Tommy Wright - SVCC (Third) President Inauguration……..………………..D-7 
 

8. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...D-8 
 

REQUESTS 
  

1. Authorization of the Cumberland Mountain Community Services                             
Performance Contract……………………………………………………….…………D-9 
 

2. Authorization of FY18 Local Emergency Management Performance Grant….D-10 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         October 1, 2018 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
 

3. Authorization of VDOT Highway Safety Improvement Program………………..D-11 
 

4. Authorization to Surplus/Transfer County Vehicles………………………………D-12 
 
MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
 

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA ……..……………………………………………………………………………...F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism………………………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports……………………………………………………………………N 
• RC Building Inspector Dilapidated Building Report..…………………………….O 
• RC Building Inspector Litter Control Report……………………………………….P   



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors                                Information Item 

137 Highland Drive                                     Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting:    10/1/18             6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 

PRESENTATIONS (Informational Only) (Limited to 5 Minutes) 
 

1. RC Tourism Committee  
 

2. RC Fire Chiefs 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

No Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Presentation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 10/1/18      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
Industrial Development Authority 
 
Ernie McFaddin   4-Year Term 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Tim Lovelace   2-Year Term 
 
Planning Commission 
 
Vacant (Mark Mitchell)   4-Year Term 
Vacant (Harry Ferguson)  4-Year Term (County Representative) 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  Board Discretion.  
SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.  











 
Board of Supervisors                                    Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 10/1/18      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of September 10, 2018  
• Unapproved minutes of September 17, 2018  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



September 10, 2018 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, September 
10, 2018 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.  The Board 
convened at 2:45 pm in order to attend a VACO/VML meeting at the Russell County Conference Center. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Lou Wallace 
David Eaton 
Carl Rhea (joined the meeting at 6:00 pm) 
Steve Breeding 
Harry Ferguson 
Rebecca Dye 
Tim Lovelace (joined the meeting at 3:10 pm) 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
Invocation by Kevin Blankenship, The River followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Harry Ferguson and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
Presentations 
 
Dr. Greg Brown, Superintendent Russell County Schools, gave a power point presentation on the RACE 
Program.  This program gives high school seniors in the County the option of going to Southwest Virginia 
Community College for (2) two years free of charge. 

 
APPROVAL TO ALLOCATE $75,000 TO THE RACE PROGRAM 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
allocate a minimum of $75,000 from the school reversion funds to the RACE Program. 
 
The vote was: 
 



Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Harry Ferguson and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair appointed Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace to the meet with Superintendent Dr. Greg Brown 
to set the job description, rate of pay, etc. for the RACE Program Coordinator part-time position. 
 
Pat Gray, representing the DAR asked the Board to declare of the week of September 18-23 as 
Constitution Week. 
 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION DECLARING SEPT. 17-23, 2018 AS CONSTITUTION WEEK 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution declaring September 17-23, 2018 as Constitution Week. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye, Harry Ferguson and Tim 
Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 
Board Appointments 
 

CARTER MCGLOTHLIN APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 
 

David Eaton nominated Carter McGlothlin 
Lou Wallace nominated Steve Newberry 
Tim Lovelace nominated Danny Altieri 
 
Danny Altieri – (2) two votes:  Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Steve Newberry – (1) one vote:  Lou Wallace 
Carter McGlothlin – (3) votes:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Harry Ferguson 
 
Carl Rhea abstained from the vote. 
 
Carter McGlothlin was appointed to the Russell County Public Service Authority for a (3) three-year 
term, said term June 30, 2021.    
 

LAUREL RASNICK RE-APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY DSS BOARD 
 
David Eaton nominated Laurel Rasnick 
 
Laurel Rasnick was appointed by acclamation to the Russell County Department of Social Services Board 
for a (4) four-year term, said term ending June 30, 2022. 

 
ANDREW HENSLEY APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY DSS BOARD 

 
Harry Ferguson nominated Andrew Hensley. 
 



Andrew Hensley was appointed by acclamation to the Russell County Department of Social Services 
Board for a (4) four-year term, said term ending June 30, 2022. 
 

KIM SHORT APPOINTED TO THE HOA TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
Lou Wallace nominated Kim Short. 
 
Kim Short was appointed to the Heart of Appalachia Tourism Development Authority by acclamation for 
a (2) two-year term, said term September 10, 2020. 
 

BETSY GILMER APPOINTED TO THE HOA TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 
David Eaton nominated Betsy Gilmer 
 
Betsy Gilmer was appointed to the Heart of Appalachia Tourism Development Authority by acclamation 
for a (2) two-year term, said term September 10, 2020. 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 06, 2018 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the August 06, 2018 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay: None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,120,358.24 including reoccurring and withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Harry Ferguson, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Sean Vance, 99 Willow Springs, Lebanon, stated that his road is not safe and a rescue squad cannot 
access his property in the winter.  He feels like he is not getting anywhere with his road and is not 
looking for anything he doesn’t deserve. 
 
Oris Christian, Lebanon commented that he had been coming to the Board meetings for years and is 
interested in county government.  He would like to be the new supervisor-at-large. 



 
Reggie Childers, Lebanon stated that a hiking trail has been established from Hayter’s Gap to Hidden 
Valley Lake.   
 
Kelley McBride Delph, RCPL announced that the library will be starting a senior citizen group beginning 
on September 20, 2018 at 10:00 am. 
 
Janice Brown, Raven explained that the County had created her road and had graded it for years.  She 
stated that the County agreed that the road would be ditched and graded twice a year.  The county has 
not maintained that schedule in recent years.  She was told that the state would take over the road. 
 
Dustin Keith, Lebanon announced that the Farm to Table Dinner has been rescheduled for September 
29, 2018 at 6:00 pm. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF RICK THOMPSON’S RESIGNATION AS TREASURER 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Harry Ferguson and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to accept the resignation of Rick Thompson as Treasurer effective September 30, 2018. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Harry Ferguson, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A VDOT RESOLUTION ON RTE. 645 ALIGNMENT 
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a VDOT Resolution concerning Rte. 645 alignment. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Harry Feruson, Rebecca Dye and Steve 
Breeding 
Nay:  None 

COUNTY AUDIT CONTRACT AWARDED TO ROBINSON FARMER AND COX  
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to accept and award the county audit contract to Robinson, Farmer and Cox in the amount of 
$52,500.00. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH PEOPLE INC. FOR GIVENS SCHOOL 
 



Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a People, Inc. Lease Agreement for Givens School with Russell County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Harry Ferguson, Rebecca Dye and Steve 
Breeding 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR A COUNTY MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to advertise for a County Maintenance Supervisor. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Harry Ferguson and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR AN RFP AND A FULL TIME HVAC EMPLOYEE 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to advertise for a Request for Proposals as well as advertise for a 
full-time employee for HVAC services for the County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Harry Ferguson and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR AN RFP FOR IT SERVICES AND A FULL TIME IT EMPLOYEE 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to advertise for a Request for Proposals as well as advertise for a full 
time IT employee for the County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Harry Ferguson and Carl 
Rhea 
Nay:  None 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO APPROPRIATE AND ALLOCATE THE FY 2017/2018 BUDGET YEAR END 
ADJUSTMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Harry Ferguson and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to appropriate and allocate the FY 2017/2018 Budget End-of-Year Adjustments.  
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Harry Ferguson, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 



 
AUTHORIZATION TO APPROPRIATE AND ALLOCATE FY 2017/2018 RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL 

REVERSION FUNDS TO THE 2018/2019 GENERAL LEDGER 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
appropriate and allocate FY 2017/2018 Russell County School Reversion Funds in to the FY 2018/2019 
General Ledger. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Carl Rhea and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
AUTHORIZATION OF A PAYMENT FROM SCHOOL REVERSION FUNDS FOR LEBANON SCHOOL ROOFING 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a payment from Russell County School Reversion Funds for the Lebanon School roofing 
contract. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Harry Ferguson, David Eaton and Carl 
Rhea 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO DONATE $250 TO THE FARM TO TABLE EVENT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a $250.00 donation to the Farm to Table Event. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE SOLID WASTE DEPT. 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve travel request from the Solid Waste Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Carl Rhea 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Harry Ferguson 
 

 
APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR AN AEP WORKFORCE FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution of Support for an AEP Workforce Feasibility Study. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to enter into Executive Session (closed) to discuss a personnel matter pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(1) of 
the Code of Virginia. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Carl 
Rhea 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Harry Ferguson– AYE 
 



AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR AN RFP FOR LEGAL SERVICES FOR THE COUNTY 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to authorize the County Administrator to advertise for a Request for Proposals for legal services for the 
County and other county agencies. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and David 
Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 
Other County Matters 
 
The Chair appointed Lou Wallace and Harry Ferguson to meet with the County Administrator and 
County Attorney to discuss the Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority. 
 

APPROVAL TO TRANSFER A .08 ACRE TRACT OF LAND TO THE TOWN OF LEBANON 
 

Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to transfer .08 acres to the Town of Lebanon as referenced earlier in the October 16, 2018 Board of 
Supervisors meeting. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE ON SEPTEMBER 17, 2018 AT 4:00 PM 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to to 
adjourn to reconvene on Monday, September 17, 2018 at 4:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye, Lou Wallace, Harry Ferguson and Steve 
Breeding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________                                       ________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                             Chairperson 
 
 
 
 



September 17, 2018 

 

A reconvened meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, September 17, 
2018 at 4:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace – joined the meeting at 4:10 pm 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Harry Ferguson 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Matt Crum, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
Invocation by Chairperson Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL TO FACILITATE A PLAN TO CONSOLIDATE THE CASTLEWOOD WATER & SEWAGE 
AUTHORITY WITH THE RUSSELL COUNTY PSA 

 
Motion made by Harry Ferguson, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the following:  
 



Recognizing that Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority is in critical condition, both operationally 
and financially this motion includes: 

 
1.  The County Administrator will provide to the Board of Supervisors the authority’s current 

financial condition. 
 

2. The Board of Supervisors hire a consultant to facilitate the planning of a consolidation between 
the Castlewood Water and Sewage Authority and the Russell County Public Service Authority.  
The consultant shall make recommendations for the new composition of the consolidation of 
authorities and recommendations for the new county water and sewer rates.  The consultant 
shall have no personal or business relationship with either service authority or any member of 
the Board of Supervisors. 

 

3. County staff will assist the authority in retaining a part-time director for the Castlewood Water 
and Sewage Authority to serve on a temporary basis until a consolidation is complete. 

 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Harry Ferguson, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Steve Breeding 
 

 
Other County Matters 

APPROVAL TO PAINT PARKING SPACES AT THE RCPL 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Harry Ferguson and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve the painting of parking spaces at a cost of $600.00 for the Russell County Public Library. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Harry Ferguson, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca 
Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL OF A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR THE SWVA EMS COUNCIL 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Chairperson to sign a letter of support for the Southwest Virginia Emergency Management 
Council’s designation application as a regional emergency medical services council. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR A DEPUTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR 
 



Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Emergency Management Department to advertise for a part-time Deputy Emergency 
Management Coordinator which will be funded by a grant. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A LAND USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE APPALACHIAN GATEWAY 
HORSE AND TRAIL ASSOCIATION 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Land Use Agreement with the Appalachian Gateway Horse and Trail Association. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO APPROPRIATE $10,000 TO THE REGIONAL IDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate $10,000 to the Regional Industrial Development Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Harry 
Ferguson 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________                            ____________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                           Chairperson 



  
Board of Supervisors                            Action Item B-1- B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson   
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 10/1/18           6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s September 2018 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s September 2018 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s September 2018 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• September 2018 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Items 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

    Meeting: 10/1/18   6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. RC Treasurer Writ of Election………………………………………….……..C-1 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

Board of Supervisors                         Action Item D-1–D-10 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 10/1/18    6:00 PM 
 
 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 

The County Administrator Reports & Request for October 2018: 
 
REPORTS 

 
1. Engineering Services (RFP) for Consolidation of RC PSA & CWSA…………..D-1 

 
2. Legal Services (RFP) – County Attorney……………………………………………D-2 

 
3. Russell County Cost Allocation Plan 6/30/2018……………………………………D-3 

 
4. Maintenance Supervisor Position…………………………………………………….D-4 

 
5. Veteran’s Forum at SWCC……………………………………………………………..D-5 

 
6. Cleveland School Property Survey…………………………………………………..D-6 

 
7. Dr. Tommy Wright - SVCC (Third) President Inauguration……..………………..D-7 

 
8. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...D-8 

 
REQUESTS 

  
1. Authorization of the Cumberland Mountain Community Services                             

Performance Contract……………………………………………………….…………D-9 
 

2. Authorization of FY18 Local Emergency Management Performance Grant….D-10 
 

3. Authorization of VDOT Highway Safety Improvement Program………………..D-11 
 

4. Authorization to Surplus/Transfer County Vehicles………………………………D-12 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):                                                                                                                      
Board Discretion.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s)                                                                                                                                        
Board Discretion.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)  
 

Professional Engineering Services  
 

ADVERTISEMENT & PUBLIC NOTICE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors is seeking proposals from qualified 
engineering firms to provide professional engineering services to evaluate the 
consolidation of the Russell County Public Service Authority (PSA) and the Castlewood 
Water & Sewage Authority (CWSA) located in Russell County, Virginia.  Proposals are 
due no later than 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, October 9th, 2018. Any proposals received after 
this deadline may be returned to the offeror unopened. The Owner reserves the right to 
reject any and all proposals.   
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The Owner is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap. The Engineer must 
certify that they do not, or will not, maintain or provide for their employees any facilities 
that are segregated on the basis of race, color, creed, or national origin; that they will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
religion, sex, or national origin, except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona 
fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the 
Engineer.  The Owner does not discriminate against faith-based organizations. 
 
The Engineer shall comply with the President’s Executive Order #11246 prohibiting 
discrimination in employment regarding race, color, creed, sex, or national origin; the 
President’s Executive Orders #12138 and #11625 regarding utilization of MBE/WBE 
firms; and the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
Inquiries and proposal packets should be addressed to: 
 
Lonzo Lester, MBA, CPC, VCO  
County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Russell, VA 24266 
276-889-8000 
276-889-8011 (FAX) 
 
   

                                                                 BY ORDER OF THE 
                                                                RUSSELL COUNTY 

                                                                                          BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)  
 

Professional Legal Services  
 

ADVERTISEMENT & PUBLIC NOTICE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors is seeking proposals for the provision of legal 
services as the County Attorney.  Individuals or firms meeting the requirements of this 
RFP are invited to submit their credentials.  Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m., 
Tuesday, October 9th, 2018. Any proposals received after this deadline may be returned 
to the offeror unopened. The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all proposals.   
 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The Owner is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap. The Attorney must 
certify that they do not, or will not, maintain or provide for their employees any facilities 
that are segregated on the basis of race, color, creed, or national origin; that they will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
religion, sex, or national origin, except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona 
fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the 
Attorney.  The Owner does not discriminate against faith-based organizations. 
 
The Attorney shall comply with the President’s Executive Order #11246 prohibiting 
discrimination in employment regarding race, color, creed, sex, or national origin; the 
President’s Executive Orders #12138 and #11625 regarding utilization of MBE/WBE 
firms; and the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
Inquiries and proposal packets should be addressed to: 
 
Lonzo Lester, MBA, CPC, VCO  
County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Russell, VA 24266 
276-889-8000 
276-889-8011 (FAX) 
 
   

                                                                 BY ORDER OF THE 
                                                                RUSSELL COUNTY 

                                                                                          BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



 

 

Public Notice  
MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR POSITION (FULL-TIME) 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors is seeking applicants for a full-time Maintenance 
Supervisor Position.  Applications and details of the job description may be obtained at the County 
Administrator’s Office at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA. or by calling (276) 889-8000.  
Applications must be received by Tuesday, October 9, 2018 at 3 p.m.  Russell County does not 
discriminate on the basis of race, age, color, sex, national origin or religion.   

Authorized by Russell County Board of Supervisors 



Cleveland

01/25/2018





COUNTY PROJECTS  
ACTIVITY LIST 

 
 

COMPLETED PROJECTS 
1. Judge Moore & Judge Patton Office Renovation – Extend Office Space/Remove Walls/Change 

Entrance/Carpet/Security Cameras & Door Alarms – Completed. 
 

2. Courthouse Media Room/Hallways – Painted. – Completed. 
 

3. Dante Depot – Removed Roof – Completed.  Small debris cleanup. – Completed. 
 

4. Oak Grove Community – HVAC/Refrigerator/Stove – Move Refrigerator/Stove/Microwave to 
Center – Cleanup, tile, electrical, paint, door facings. – Completed.  
 

5. Finney Community Center – Awning, chairs, and swing seats replaced. – Completed. 
 

6. Dante Community Center – Stove (Fire Suppression System) (VDH Inspection). -  Completed. 
 

7. Altrip & Castlewood Boat Docks – Landscaped. - Completed.   
 

8. Dante - Dilapidated Houses – Bunch Town (2 Houses) (2 Completed); Completing legal 
requirements for removal of other listed dilapidated buildings (In-Process).  

 
9. RC Government Center – Roof Repair.  Roof repair and HVAC leaks.  Roof inspected and “Fair” 

condition (See attached report).  TEMPCO and maintenance staff repaired. - Completed. 
 

10. RC Fair Grounds – Motor Graded, cleaned, and mowed. - Completed. 
 

11. CGI/DSS Offices – Removed carpet and other structure cleanup. – Completed. 

IN-PROGRESS PROJECTS 
12. Commonwealth Attorney Office – Painted. – In-Progress.  

 
13. Sheriff/911 Offices Remodeled – DSS Building – Scheduled. 

 
14. Cleveland Ball Park - Electrical/Ice machine. Scheduled. 

 
15. Castlewood Community Center – Roof replaced, upper floor remodeled, & lower floor cleaned. 

- Scheduled.  
 

16. Animal Shelter Floor – Clean & Paint. Scheduled.  





















































 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA IN SUPPORT OF AN APPLICATION AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO SUBMIT SUCH APPLICATION TO THE VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF 
UP TO $XXXX   FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019 FOR TWO PROJECTS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY ADMINISTRTATOR TO TAKE NECESSARY CERTAIN ACTIONS IN 
CONNECTION WITH SUCH PROJECTS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Russell County desires to submit an application for an allocation of 

funds up to $XXXX for any funds provided by VDOT for the projects listed below, and no local 
match will be required by the County. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County as follows: 

1. The Board hereby supports the application referred to herein and hereby 
authorizes the County Administrator to submit such application to VDOT for funds from 
VDOT’s Highway Safety Improvement Program for FY 2019 in the amount of $XXXX for the 
following 

a. Installation of turn lane(s) on Route 80 beginning just north of the Route 19 / Route 
80 intersection at Rosedale north for approximately 0.30 miles to Rosedale Heights Lane.   

 
2.  The County Administrator is further authorized to take such further actions and 

execute such further documents, as may be necessary to submit the above application and to 
furnish such additional information as may be required for such application. 

 

Present:___________ 
Absent:___________ 
Ayes: ___________ 
Nays: ___________ 
 
 
 
               Attest:      ___ 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson             Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 



 
 

The undersigned clerk of the Russell County, Virginia (the “County”), hereby certifies that 
the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the 
Board held on October 1, 2018.  I hereby further certify that such meeting was a regularly 
scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing resolution, a quorum was 
present. I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members 
and the voting on the foregoing resolution was as follows: 

 
WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the County of Russell as of October 1, 2018. 

 
 
 
 

(SEAL) 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA COUNTY 
OF Russell  
Attested Photocopy: 

 

On this 1st day of October, I, Lonzo Lester, Clerk, attest that the preceding 
document is a true, exact. Complete and unaltered photocopy made by me of the foregoing 
Resolution. 

 








































































































	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 10/1/18   6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Cleveland EMS Area.pdf
	Cleveland

	Reports.pdf
	Meeting: 10/1/18    6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	Board Discretion.
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s)                                                                                                                                        Board Discretion.

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting:    10/1/18             6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:


